NOTICE AND CALL OF A SPECIAL MEETING:
San Simeon Community Services
Board of Directors Special Meeting

I, Gwen Kellas, Chairperson of the San Simeon Community Services District Board of Directors, hereby
call a Special Meeting of the Board of Directors, pursuant to California Government Code Section
54956. The Special Meeting will be held Friday: June 4, 2021 at 4:00 pm.

Internet Meeting Location

Pursuant to Governor Gavin Newsom’s Executive Order N-29-20 dated March 17, 2020 and the
San Luis Obispo County Local Emergency Order and Regulation regarding COVID-19 dated
March 18, 2020, this meeting shall occur as a virtual teleconference using the Zoom app.

Meeting ID: 927 053 7206
Password: 114376

One tap mobile

+1 669 900 9128, 9270537206# US (San Jose)
+1 346 248 7799, 9270537206# US (Houston)

Time: June 4, 2021 4:00 PM Pacific Time

NOTE: On the day of the meeting, the virtual meeting room will be open beginning at 3:30 PM. If you
are unable to access the virtual meeting please contact Cortney Murguia at (805) 927-4778 prior to
the 4:00 PM meeting start time and staff can assist you in accessing the meeting. Should you have
any questions related to the information on this agenda or if you wish to submit public comment in the
written format you can email Cortney Murguia at admin@sansimeoncsd.org. Members of the public
can also contact the District office at (805) 927-4778 or (805) 400-7399 with any questions or
concerns related to this agenda or accessing the meeting.

The purpose of the Special Meeting is to discuss or transact the following business:

1. OPEN SESSION: 4:00 PM
A. Roll Call

2. PUBLIC COMMENT:
SSCSD Board Agenda  Page 1


mailto:admin@sansimeoncsd.org

This public comment period provides an opportunity for members of the public to address the
Board on matters discussed during Agenda Item #3. If a member of the public wishes to speak
at this time, Public Comment is limited to three (3) minutes.

. BUSINESS ACTION ITEM:

A. Discussion regarding the District’s response to letter from San Luis Obispo County
Public Works dated May 6, 2021 requesting additional information about District
project that was funded by Proposition 84 and information about Proposition 1 grant
award funding.

. ADJOURNMENT

If requested, this agenda shall be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons
with a disability, as required by the Americans with Disabilities Act. To make a request for a
disability-related modification or accommodation, contact the District Administrator at 805-927-
4778.

SSCSD Board Agenda  Page 2



PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



BUSINESS ACTION ITEM STAFF REPORT

Item 3.A. Discussion regarding the District’s response to letter from
San Luis Obispo County Public Works dated May 6, 2021 requesting
additional information about District project that was funded by
Proposition 84 and information about Proposition 1 grant award
funding.

SUMMARY:

Attached to the staff report is the May 6, 2021 letter from John Diodati, Interim
Director of Public Works for the County of San Luis Obispo. District Council has
prepared a response letter on behalf of the District.

Staff is suggesting that the Board may wish to authorize Chairperson Kellas to
respond to the May 6, 2021 County Proposition 84 and Proposition 1 grant
inquiry letter.

Enc: May 6, 2021 letter from John Diodati
Draft version of the response letter prepared on behalf of Chairperson Kellas
Draft version of the response letter prepared by District Council
Support documentation exhibits 1 -6

SSCSD BOARD MEETING STAFF REPORT



Letter dated May 6, 2021 Proposition 84 and Proposition 1
Grant inquiry letter from John Diodati, Interim Director of
Public Works for the County of San Luis Obispo



COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO
Department of Public Works

COUNTY
‘5 SAN LUIS
OBISPO

John Diodati, /nterim Director

May 6, 2021

Gwen Kellas

Chair, Board of Directors

San Simeon Community Services District
111 Pico Avenue

San Simeon, CA 93452
GKellas@sansimeoncsd.org

SENT VIA EMAIL

Subject: Follow-up regarding Deficient Response to Information Requests regarding:
Notification of Public Complaint regarding a Project under the Proposition 84
Integrated Regional Water Management Implementation Grant Program
(Grant Agreement No. 4600011487) (DWR Notification); Notification of a Public
Complaint regarding a Project under the Proposition 1 Integrated Regional Water
Management Disadvantaged Community Involvement Grant Program
(Grant Agreement No. 4600012296) (RWMF Notification); Proposition 1,
Round 1 Integrated Regional Water Management Implementation Grant Program

Dear Chairperson Kellas:

This letter is in follow-up to the San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation
District’s (Flood Control District) letter dated December 21, 2020 requesting specific information
from the San Simeon Community Services District (SSCSD) regarding the above-identified
Notifications, the response dated January 20, 2021 from the SSCSD's counsel, Mr. Jeffrey Minnery,
and lack of subsequent additional documents provided by the SSCSD. More specifically,
this letter includes a general assessment of Mr. Minnery's response followed by a chart
enumerating each prior request and the sufficiency of the documents/information produced to
date. Based on the Flood Control District's assessment and as directed in more detail below,
a complete narrative response and the previously requested documents must be furnished
as soon as possible but no later than June 11. The Flood Control District has an obligation to
timely respond to DWR and the RWMF, and its response will be based on the materials furnished
by the SSCSD on or before the above deadline.

The correspondence from Mr. Minnery dated January 20, 2021 does not constitute the written
response to the claims raised in either the DWR Notification or the RWMF Notification requested
by the Flood Control District. By way of summary, with respect to the former, the Flood Control
District requested “[a] detailed written response to the two (2) claims mentioned in the

County of San Luis Obispo Department of Public Works
County Gov't Center, Room 206 | San Luis Obispo, CA 93408 | (P)805-781-5252 | (F)805-781-1229
pwd@co.slo.ca.us | slocounty.ca.gov



DWR Notification, including the SSCSD's position regarding whether the manner in which it
contracted with Phoenix Civil Engineering in connection with the Well Head Treatment Project
complied with Standard Condition D.13) [...] and whether the Well Head Treatment Project was
constructed entirely on SSCSD property” and stated that “[t]he written response should be
supported by a legal analysis of applicable statutes, including but not limited to, Government Code
Section 4529.12 [...]" (emphasis added). Similarly with respect to the latter, the Flood Control
District requested “[a] detailed written response to the claim raised in the RWMF Notification,
including SSCSD's position regarding whether the manner in which it contracted with Phoenix
Civil Engineering in connection with the Reservoir Expansion Project complied with Standard
Condition D.13)" and stated that “[t]he written response should be supported by a legal analysis
of applicable statutes, including but not limited to, Government Code Section 4259.12 [sic] [...]"
(emphasis added). With respect to both Notifications, the Flood Control District's letter also
included an enumerated list of information to be provided in the response.

The Flood Control District notes that as a general matter, the response to the claims related to
Standard Condition D.13) are both inaccurate and conclusory. For example, Mr. Minnery states
that “the complaint fails for lack of specificity,” because it fails to cite a law or regulation that was
violated and because it incorrectly asserts that competitive bidding is required.
However, as noted above and notwithstanding the absence of any sort of “specificity”
requirements, the request does specifically refer to (and requests an analysis of the applicability
of) Government Code Section 4529.12. In addition, Standard Condition D.13) does not refer just
to competitive bidding but rather to “applicable laws and regulations regarding securing
competitive bids and undertaking competitive negotiations” (emphasis added). The Flood Control
District also notes that it understands the SSCSD's position that no SSCSD director nor any staff
member has or had a financial or business relationship with Phoenix Civil Engineering.
However, no legal analysis has been provided indicating that this is dispositive or sufficient for
purposes of assessing compliance with Standard Condition D.13) or with the SSCSD's
procurement policy.

With respect to the claim related to property ownership and the SSCSD's legal right to construct
the Well Head Treatment Project, Mr. Minnery states that the claim is premature and is
“under review" by the SSCSD with “additional follow-up” needed. However, the Flood Control
District has received only one additional and unexplained document subsequent to Mr. Minnery’s
letter. Thus, the necessary follow-up has not been completed notwithstanding that the
Flood Control District's request was made over four (4) months ago and notwithstanding that the
Flood Control District has reason to believe that the SSCSD Board of Directors has publicly
considered ways to respond to the claim multiple times since our initial letter. Based on the latter,
the SSCSD's response should also contain an updated narrative on its position regarding the
property ownership complaint and its approach to resolving the issue with the Hearst
Corporation.

County of San Luis Obispo Department of Public Works
County Gov't Center, Room 206 | San Luis Obispo, CA 93408 | (P)805-781-5252 | (F)805-781-1229
pwd@co.slo.ca.us | slocounty.ca.gov



In addition to the above summary, the Flood Control District has created a chart organized by
grant agreement identifying the previously requested information with an analysis of the
sufficiency of the SSCSD's response in the pages that follow. Based on the deficiencies
summarized above and those identified below, we again ask that consistent with contractual
requirements, the SSCSD provide a complete written response in the form originally requested
but updated based on recent developments as soon as possible but no later than June 11.
This is the final request. After June 11, the Flood Control District will send a final response to
DWR and the RWMF regarding the claims, including a discussion of any insufficient responses to

our original request and reiterated in this letter.

Proposition 84 IRWM Grant Program, Agreement. No. 4600011487

Original Request by Flood Control District

Response by

Flood Control District

(see letter dated 12/21/2020 for details) SSCSD Comments on Response
- . : . Provide legal analysis,
Written r nse t mplaint Legal Anal . L
ritten Fespense to complaint with Legal Analysls of Incomplete including, without limitation,

compliance with Standard Condition D.13) and
applicable statutes

(see above)

analysis of Government
Code Section 4529.12

Documentation of process in selection of Phoenix Civil
Engineering

Not provided

Provide documentation per
SSCSD procurement policy,
including, without limitation,
analysis of compliance with
SSCSD Policy 4042.11 (if in
effect at time)

Documentation of approval of Phoenix Civil

Engineering to perform work Provided
Provide effective date(s) of
; policies provided by SSCSD
Copy of SSCSD current procurement policy Incomplete and any additional
responsive policy
Provide effective date(s) of
Copy of SSCSD procurement policy at the time of policies provided by SSCSD
A . ) Incomplete g
process and approval of Phoenix Civil Engineering and any additional
responsive policy
Survey showing the location of Project Incomplete Did not show project area

Easement or other legal instrument in effect at the
time of construction of the project

Not provided

Easement or other legal instrument currently in effect
for the project

Not provided

Information regarding when any member of SSCSD
Board or staff became aware of the possibility that the
project may not be on SSCSD owned land

Not provided

Provide documents,
narrative and/or legal
analysis regarding the status
of the project location and
property ownership

County of San Luis Obispo Department of Public Works
County Gov't Center, Room 206 | San Luis Obispo, CA 93408 | (P)805-781-5252 | (F) 805-781-1229
pwd@co.slo.ca.us | slocounty.ca.gov




Proposition 1 IRWM Disadvantaged Community Involvement Grant Program,

Agreement. No. 4600012296

Original Request by Flood Control District

Response by

Flood Control District

(see letter dated 12/21/2020 for details) SSCSD Comments on Response
. . . . Provide legal analysis,
Written response to complaint with Legal Analysis of ' OVId. °8 : @ y' e
Incomplete | including, without limitation,

compliance with Standard Condition D.13) and
applicable statutes

(see above)

analysis of Government
Code Section 4529.12

Documentation of process in selection of Phoenix Civil
Engineering

Not provided

Provide documentation per
SSCSD procurement policy,
including, without limitation,
analysis of compliance with
SSCSD Policy 4042.11 (if in
effect at time)

Documentation of approval of Phoenix Civil

Engineering to perform work Provided
Provide effective date(s) of
. policies provided by SSCSD
Copy of SSCSD current procurement policy Incomplete and any additional
responsive policy
Provide effective date(s) of
. . ;e . D
Copy of SSCSD procurement policy at the time of Incornplete policies provided by SSCS

process and approval of Phoenix Civil Engineering

and any additional
responsive policy

Proposition 1, Round 1 IRWM Grant Program

Original Request by Flood Control District

Response by

Flood Control District

(see letter dated 12/21/2020 for details) CSD Comments on Response
2019 IRWM Plan proof of adoption

ified envi Id h Previously
Certified environmental document with state Provided

clearinghouse ID

No Legal challenges letter

Not provided

Land Use Permit from County

Not provided

Grading Permit from County

Not provided

Any other applicable permit(s) for project

Not provided

Proof of right to construct and operate project (i.e.
easement)

Not provided

Project Monitoring Plan

Not provided

Other funding secured

Not provided

Explanation of status, schedule and steps to complete
incomplete documents

Not provided

Provide status, schedule and
steps to complete
incomplete grant-required
documentation

County of San Luis Obispo Department of Public Works
County Gov't Center, Room 206 | San Luis Obispo, CA 93408 | (P)805-781-5252 | (F)805-781-1229
pwd@co.slo.ca.us | slocounty.ca.gov




Status of the Prop 1, Round 1 IRWM Grant

Because of the above open investigations (as well as due to the outstanding deliverables noted
both in our prior letter and above), the “Reservoir Expansion Project, Phase 1 - Distribution
System” project will be identified as a “placeholder” project in the not yet finalized Proposition 1,
Round 1 Grant Agreement (Agreement). A placeholder project is a project that is not included in
the Agreement as a reimbursable project but one that retains its status as “awarded.” It is
anticipated that such status will remain in place while the claims in question are reviewed by the
Flood Control District, RWMF and DWR. If the SSCSD’s responses to the claims are deemed
satisfactory and the SSCSD is otherwise in compliance with the grant requirements/has
submitted the necessary deliverables, the Agreement could be amended to include the project
as a reimbursable project.

Notwithstanding the above, please be advised that the project cannot remain an “awarded” but
not currently reimbursable project indefinitely both for technical reasons (the term of the
Agreement) and practical reasons (e.g., commencement of subsequent grant cycles). If not
before, the Flood Control District and/or DWR will consider whether it should seek a change in
the status of the project when DWR releases the draft Guidelines for the Proposition 1, Round 2
IRWM Grant (expected in summer 2021). A“change in the status” could include but is not limited
to: including the project in the grant agreement as a normal, reimbursable project; extension of
the placeholder status; or loss of the grant award.

Please contact Brendan Clark, (805) 788-2316 or bclark@co.slo.ca.us, with any questions and to
provide the requested information.

Sincerely,

Bruce Gibson, District 2 Supervisor

Carmel Brown, Department of Water Resources

Tim Carson, Regional Water Management Foundation
Rita Neal, County Counsel

Brendan Clark, County Staff

Charles Grace, San Simeon CSD General Manager
Jeff Minnery, San Simeon CSD District Counsel

L:\Water Resources\2021\May\LTR to SSCSD_2021_05_06_Final.docxBC.nd

County of San Luis Obispo Department of Public Works
County Gov't Center, Room 206 | San Luis Obispo, CA 93408 | (P) 805-781-5252 | (F)805-781-1229
pwd@co.slo.ca.us | slocounty.ca.gov



Draft version of the response letter prepared on
behalf of Chairperson Kellas



San Simeon Community Services District

111 Pico Avenue, San Simeon, California 93452
(805) 927-4778 Fax (805) 927-0399

Chairperson Kellas, Director de la Rosa,
Director Maurer, Director Carson, Director Giacoletti

June 3, 2021

Subject: Response to your information requests dated December 21, 2020, and
May 6, 2021, regarding complaints on Grant Agreement No. 4600011487
and Grant Agreement No. 4600012296 and project information relating to
grant awarded under Proposition 1, Round 1 of the Integrated Regional
Water Management Program.

Mr. Diodati:

This correspondence is in response to your requests for information dated
December 21, 2020, and May 6, 2021, regarding the above-referenced items. This
response is also intended to address the November 4, 2020 notification that you
received from the California Department of Water Resources (‘DWR”) and the
information request your department received from the Regional Water Management
Foundation (“RWMF”) dated November 10, 2020. We have included a response from
our District Legal Counsel which we anticipate will satisfy your requests.

Sincerely,

Gwen Kellas, Chairperson
San Simeon Community Services District



Draft version of the response letter prepared by
District Council dated June 4, 2021



ADAMSKI MOROSKI MADDEN
CUMBERLAND & GREEN LLP

ATTORNEYS AT LAW

Post Office Box 3835 *+ San Luis Obispo, California 93403-3835
T 805-543-0990 « F 805-543-0980 * www.ammcglaw.com

June 4, 2021

John Diodati, Interim Director, Department of Public Works

County of San Luis Obispo

San Luis Obispo County Government Center, Room 206

San Luis Obispo, CA 93408
Email: jdiodati@co.slo.ca.us

Via Electronic Mail

Subject: Response to your information requests dated December 21, 2020, and May 6, 2021,
regarding complaints on Grant Agreement No. 4600011487 and Grant Agreement No.
4600012296 and project information relating to grant awarded under Proposition 1,
Round 1 of the Integrated Regional Water Management Program.

Dear Mr. Diodati:

We represent the San Simeon Community Services District (“District”), and this correspondence
is in response to your requests for information dated December 21, 2020, and May 6, 2021, regarding
the above-referenced items. This response is also intended to address the November 4, 2020
notification that you received from the California Department of Water Resources (“DWR”) and the
information request your department received fromthe Regional Water Management Foundation
(“RWMF”) dated November 10, 2020. We have organized this response in coordination with your May
6, 2021, correspondence for easy reference to the documents and information requested.

Proposition 84 IRWM Grant Program, Agreement No. 4600011487

Original Request by Flood Control District
(see letter dated 12/21/2020 for details)

Response by SSCSD

Flood Control District
Comments on Response

Request No. 1. Written response to
complaint with Legal Analysis of compliance
with Standard Condition D.13 and applicable
statutes

See Narrative
Response to Request
No. 1

Provide legal analysis,
including, without limitation,
analysis of Government Code
Section 4529.12

Request No. 2. Documentation of process in
selection of Phoenix Civil Engineering

See Document
Response to Request
Nos. 2 and 3

Provide documentation per
SSCSD procurement policy,
including, without limitation,

Paso Robles Office: 1948 Spring Street *+ Paso Robles, CA 93446-1620 + T 805-238-2300 + F 805-238-2322


mailto:jdiodati@co.slo.ca.us

John Diodati, Interim Director, Department of Public Works

County of San Luis Obispo
June 4, 2021
Page 2

analysis of compliance with
SSCSD Policy 4042.11 (if in
effect at time)

Request No. 3. Documentation of approval
of Phoenix Civil Engineering to perform work

Provided

n/a

Request No. 4. Copy of SSCSD current
procurement policy and any additional
policies

See Document
Response to Request
No. 4

Provide effective date(s) of
policies provided by SSCSD
and any additional
responsive policy

Request No. 5. Copy of SSCSD procurement
policy at the time of process and approval of
Phoenix Civil Engineering and any additional
policies

See Document
Response to Request
No.5

Provide effective date(s) of
policies provided by SSCSD
and any additional
responsive policy

Request No. 6. Survey showing the location
of Project

See Document
Response to Request
No. 6

Did not show project area

Request No. 7. Easement or other legal
instrument in effect at the time of
construction of the project

See Narrative and
Document Response
to Request Nos. 7 -9

Request No. 8. Easement or other legal
instrument currently in effect for the project

See Narrative and
Document Response
to Request Nos. 7 -9

Request No. 9. Information regarding when
any member of SSCSD Board or staff became
aware of the possibility that the project may
not be on SSCSD-owned land

See Narrative and
Document Response
to Request Nos. 7 -9

Provide documents, narrative
and/or legal analysis
regarding the status of the
project location and property
ownership

Narrative Response to Request No. 1

Government Code section 4529.12 was added to the government code through Proposition 35,
“The Fair Competition and Taxpayer Savings Initiative,” which was approved by voters in 2000.

Paso Robles Office: 1948 Spring Street *+ Paso Robles, CA 93446-1620 + T 805-238-2300 + F 805-238-2322




John Diodati, Interim Director, Department of Public Works
County of San Luis Obispo

June 4, 2021

Page 3

California Government Code section 4529.12 requires “[a]ll architectural and engineering services [to
be] procured pursuant to a fair, competitive selection process.”

Prior to Proposition 35, the selection of firms to perform architectural and engineering services
was governed primarily by California Government Code section 4526 which states that “selection. . .
shall be on the basis of demonstrated competence and on the professional qualification necessary for
the satisfactory performance of the services required.” The later provisions of this section of the
Government Code (Gov. Code, §§ 4526.5-4529.5) go on to describe what is referred to as the
Qualification Based Selection (“QBS”) process.

The QBS process requires discussions with no less than three firms regarding anticipated
concepts and methods for proposed services. See Gov. Code, §4527(a). It is only after the selection of a
firm has been made, that prices can be discussed with the firms. See Gov. Code, § 4528(a). The QBS
process is not a traditional competitive bidding process, but a means to use some “market forces” while
still basing the decision on qualifications, not price. Local agencies “may undertake [these] procedures.”
Id. at 4527(b) and 4528(b). The State and its agencies are required to follow that QBS procedure, but it
is not mandatory for local agencies, such as the District.

In 2007, the California Supreme Court considered whether Proposition 35 (Gov. Code, §
4526.12) repealed or superseded the QBS process. See Professional Engineers in California Government
v. Kempton, et al. (2007) 40 Cal.4th 1016. In Kempton, a.group of engineers sued the State of California
and argued that Government Code section 4529.12’s “fair, competitive selection process” language
mandated competitive bidding of professional services and effectively repealed California’s pre-
Proposition 35 QBS process: The California Supreme Court disagreed. The Supreme Court explained
that California’s QBS process “is a competitive process and ‘while cost may be a less salient
consideration in the qualifications-based selection procedure than in a competitive bidding process, it is
a consideration nevertheless."” Id. at 1049.

Following Kempton, holding that traditional competitive bidding is not mandatory, and the
discretionary language in Government Code sections 4527 and 4528, local agencies are required (if they
are not strictly following the QBS process) to develop their own procurement procedures. The
procedure should be a fair, competitive selection process, that prohibits conflicts of interest and other
unlawful activity.

The District’s policy in effect at the time of selecting Phoenix Civil Engineering allowed the
District to hire consultants, such as engineers, based on the consultant’s experience and qualifications.
District Policy No. 4042.12 required consultants to provide cost estimates to be used in the selection
process, but the District was not required to hire the “lowest bidder.” This policy was followed in the
procuring of Phoenix Civil Engineering for both the Wellhead Treatment Project and the Reservoir
Expansion/ Water Plan Update.? The District’s conflict of interest policy (District Policy No. 1020) also

1 With regard to public construction projects, the District’s policy (District Policy No. 4042.11) is governed by the
Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Procedures which does require a formal bid procedure for projects
valued at over $175,000. Contracting for professional services, such as engineering services, falls outside of the
UPCCAP.

Paso Robles Office: 1948 Spring Street *+ Paso Robles, CA 93446-1620 + T 805-238-2300 + F 805-238-2322



John Diodati, Interim Director, Department of Public Works
County of San Luis Obispo

June 4, 2021

Page 4

prohibits designated employees (i.e. the General Manager) from making, participating in making, or in
any way attempting to use his/ her official position to influence, a government decision (i.e. awarding a
services contract) when the decision would have a material financial effect on that employee’s real
property, business interest, source of income, etc. District Policy 5050.50 further requires Directors of
the Board to “abstain from participating in consideration of any item involving a personal or financial
conflict of interest.” Regarding the procurement of Phoenix Engineering, the District, its staff, and Board
members have always complied with this policy.

Essentially, District Policy 4042 is divided into two sections: the first section (Policy No. 4042.11)
is applicable to construction projects which is governed by the UPCCAP; and the second section (Policy
No. 4042.12) is applicable to the hiring of consultants for professional services, such as engineering
services. The District did not follow the procedure described in District Policy No. 4042.11 because
District Policy 4042.11 does not apply to the procurement of consulting contracts for engineering design
services.’

The District obtained a proposal for engineering services, for both the Wellhead Treatment
Project and the Reservoir Expansion Project from a professional civil engineer with 20 years of
experience. Phoenix Civil Engineering’s proposals, presentations at the relevant Board meetings, and
professional reputation demonstrated the company’s competence and qualifications for being able to
provide the engineering services that the District needed for its water projects.

The proposals included rate sheets and overall cost estimates for the services, which, based on
District staff and Board members’ experience, demonstrated that the requested services were being
procured at a competitive rate, but more importantly by a qualified and capable engineer. In addition,
as is the practice with many local agencies, in making its recommendation to the Board to contract with
Phoenix Engineering, District staff referred to its file of rate sheets from various engineering companies.
The rate sheets also demonstrated the competitiveness of the proposal from Phoenix Engineering and
gave the District confidence it had negotiated a contract with a highly experienced engineer at very
reasonable rates.® In compliance with its own conflict of interest policy (and Government Code §
4529.12),,no Board members or District staff had a financial or business relationship with Phoenix Civil
Engineering at the time of contracting for these services, or at any time. Accordingly, the District

2 Admittedly, the language of Policy No. 4042.11 is somewhat ambiguous because it uses the word “engineering,”
however, Policy No. 4042.11 applies only to “public projects” as defined by Public Contract Code section 22002(c)
and not to the procurement of professional consultants, like engineers. Policy No. 4042.11 further requires
contractors to submit “bids” and are to be selected based on the lowest qualified bid. Yet, to require engineering
services to be selected based on the lowest bid is in contravention to the general principle that professionals need
to be selected based on their qualifications and experience, not on cost. Therefore, to interpret SSCSD Policy No.
4042.11 to apply to the procurement of professional services would lead to the illogical requirement of requiring
engineering services to be selected based on the lowest bidder.

3 The DWR Proposition 1 Round 1 Grant Template in Standard Condition D.11 (Competitive Bidding And
Procurements) recognizes that an agency may follow its own written policy in awarding contracts. Should the
agency not have a written policy, the Grant Template refers the applicant to follow the General Services’ State
Contracting Manual, which cites to Government Code section 4526, permitting the selection of professional
services based upon “demonstrated competence and on the professional qualifications” of the company.

Paso Robles Office: 1948 Spring Street *+ Paso Robles, CA 93446-1620 + T 805-238-2300 + F 805-238-2322



John Diodati, Interim Director, Department of Public Works
County of San Luis Obispo

June 4, 2021

Page 5

procurement process in hiring Phoenix Engineering complied with “all applicable laws and regulations
regarding securing competitive bids” as was required by Standard Condition D.13.

Some historical context is particularly important regarding the award to Phoenix Civil
Engineering for the Wellhead Treatment Project. Although the grant agreement with the County was
not effectuated until 2016, the contract with Phoenix Civil Engineering had been procured in 2014. In
January of 2014, the Governor declared a state of emergency due to record dry conditions. In or around
May of 2014, all of California, including San Simeon, was under “severe drought” or a higher level. In
response to that state of emergency, the District implemented a Stage 3. water shortage pursuant to its
Water Conservation Plan. See District Resolution No. 13-362, adopted April 9, 2014. (The District went
immediately to a Stage 3 water shortage, where normally a local agency would go to Stage 1 and then
Stage 2. This demonstrates the sudden and unexpected nature of the water shortage and the imminent
danger it posed to the District’s drinking water.) California’s drought was having a particularly negative
impact on the District’s drinking water system in that it experienced high'levels of Chloride, which
exceeded California’s mandated secondary drinking water standards.< See California Code of
Regulations, Title 22 Secondary Drinking Water Standards and SLO County Response Materials for 2015
— 2017 regarding Chloride monitoring levels.

District staff researched whether trucking in water was feasible. It was not. District staff looked
at trailer-mounted, rented water treatment units; however, the cost of renting would have exceeded or
come close to the cost of purchase. Given a lack of other feasible alternatives, an immediate water
treatment unit was needed to ensure safe drinking water for the community of San Simeon. The County
was aware of the District’s drinking water challenges and worked together with District staff through the
development, permitting, construction, and grant application process. Despite the emergency water
shortage and immediate need to reduce the chloride levels in the drinking water, the District sought a
proposal from a reputable civil engineering firm, evaluated its proposal at a public meeting, and ensured
its rates were competitive with other firms. In non-emergency situations, a more protracted evaluation
and selection procedure may have been appropriate.

Particularly for the Reservoir Expansion Project, it was important to the District that it had
worked with Phoenix Civil Engineering in the past, and therefore, knew it was contracting with an
engineer that understood its unique needs as a disadvantaged community and knew the company was
familiar with its complex water engineering challenges. The District also believed it would be most cost
effective for the District to work with an engineer that already understood its water system. The District
received an updated rate sheet from Phoenix at the time of the Reservoir Expansion Project and saw
that its rates had only increased slightly over the years. In 2019, the District implemented a more formal
procurement procedure for professional services. Nonetheless, the District’s process for selecting
Phoenix Civil Engineering was always in compliance with the law, Standard Condition D.13, and District
policies.

Document Response to Request Nos. 2 and 3

Attachment one (1) includes responsive documents regarding the process of selecting Phoenix
Civil Engineering.

Paso Robles Office: 1948 Spring Street *+ Paso Robles, CA 93446-1620 + T 805-238-2300 + F 805-238-2322



John Diodati, Interim Director, Department of Public Works
County of San Luis Obispo
June 4, 2021

Page 6

PwnNPE

Effective April 9, 2014; Resolution 13-362 implementing Stage Three Water Shortage.
September 23, 2014 Phoenix Civil Engineering Potable Water Treatment Design Proposal.
October 8, 2014 District Agenda (Item 6.C.) Consideration of Phoenix Design Proposal.
October 8, 2014 District Board Meeting Minutes/Approval of Phoenix Wellhead Treatment
Design Proposal (Iltem 6.C.) and Board motion to authorize purchase of Wellhead Treatment
Unit (Item E).

District engineering company rate sheets.

April 8, 2015 District Board Meeting Agenda adopting Resolution 15-371 Water Shortage
Emergency (ltem 6.C.).

April 8, 2015 District Resolution 15-371 implementing Stage-Three Water Shortage.
California Code of Regulations, Title 22 Secondary Drinking Water Standards.

SLO County Response Materials for 2015 — 2017 regarding San Simeon CSD Chloride
monitoring levels.

Document Response to Request No. 4

Attachment two (2) includes responsive documents regarding the District’s current procurement

policies.

Effective April 11, 2012; District Resolution 12-348 election to subject District to the Uniform
Public Construction Cost Accounting Procedures.

Effective April 11,2012; Ordinance No. 111 providing informal bidding procedures under the
Uniform PublicConstruction Cost Accounting Act.

Effective June 11, 2014; District Resolution 14-363 election to subject District to the Uniform
Public Construction Cost'/Accounting Procedures (“UPCCAP”).

Effective May 13, 2019; District Current District Procurement Policy 19.00.

Document Response to Request No. 5

Attachment three (3) includes responsive documents regarding the District’s current
procurement policies.

1.
2.

Effective 2004; District Policy 4042 “Employment of Outside Contractors and Consultants”.
Effective April 11, 2012; District Resolution 12-348 election to subject District to the Uniform
Public Construction Cost Accounting Procedures.

Effective April 11, 2012; Ordinance No. 111 providing informal bidding procedures under the
Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act.

Effective June 11, 2014; District Resolution 14-363 election to subject District to the Uniform
Public Construction Cost Accounting Procedures.

Document Response to Request No. 6

Attachment four (4) includes responsive documents regarding surveys and information related
to the location of the Potable Water Wellhead Treatment Project.

Paso Robles Office: 1948 Spring Street *+ Paso Robles, CA 93446-1620 + T 805-238-2300 + F 805-238-2322



John Diodati, Interim Director, Department of Public Works
County of San Luis Obispo

June 4, 2021

Page 7

1. July 29, 2016 Record Drawing of Potable Water Wellhead Treatment Project.
2. 2007 Twin Cities Surveying, Inc. Sewer and Easement Survey.
3. August 18, 2020 Wallace Group Summary of Location of the District Facilities.

Narrative Response to Request Nos. 7 -9

Prior to the design and construction of the Potable Water Wellhead Treatment Project, there
was no indication that the project was not entirely within District property. The District relied, in part,
on the existing fence line, which was installed by the adjacent property owner, Hearst Holdings Inc.
(“Hearst”), many years prior. Since the time of the fence installation, the District had and has
maintained the property on its side of the fence and the project was constructed at least ten (10) feet
from the fence line. The fence appears to be located within'an abandoned county road that divides the
District property from its adjacent neighbor. On May 7, 2015, the District received an email from the
County of San Luis Obispo acknowledging a completed Land Use Permit Application and fee waiver. See
May 7, 2015 email to Charles Grace. The County’s emails states, “construction can begin.” Prior to
construction, however, the District reviewed and relied upon an Opinion of Legal Counsel relative to the
right-of-way, wherein counsel determined that the District has “the necessary rights-of-way for the
construction, operation, and maintenance of its facilitiesiin their present or proposed location.” See
August 19, 2015 USDA Opinion of Counsel.

In or about December 2018, the District Chairperson received an email from a citizen
challenging the District’s location of the facility. See December 12, 2018 email to then District
Chairperson McGuire. This was the first time the District’s rightful use of the property was questioned.
In July 2020, Hearst concluded that the District’s Wellhead Project encroached on its property based
upon a survey report by the Wallace Group. See August 18, 2020 Wallace Group Survey Report. As an
immediate measure to address the issue, the District and Hearst entered into an Encroachment License
Agreement in October 2020 to ensure no disruption to the facility operation. The encroachment
agreement remains in effect today.

Since October 2020, the District has continued to examine additional information regarding the
alleged encroachment of its facility. On February 25, 2021, the District reviewed correspondence from
the law firm of Ogden & Fricks LLP related to the alleged encroachment. The attorney correspondence
and subject analysis contend that the County’s abandonment of the county road left the two adjacent
property owners (Hearst and the District) with fee title interest in one half each of the abandoned right-
of-way. See February 25, 2021 Ogden & Fricks LLP letter. Based on continued questions as to property
rights related to the abandoned road, the District has approached Hearst with a permanent license
agreement that would extinguish, if and when, the District establishes that it holds fee title interest in
the subject property. The District continues to work with Hearst on this issues and District efforts in this
regard remain ongoing.

Paso Robles Office: 1948 Spring Street *+ Paso Robles, CA 93446-1620 + T 805-238-2300 + F 805-238-2322



John Diodati, Interim Director, Department of Public Works
County of San Luis Obispo
June 4, 2021

Page 8

Document Response to Request Nos. 7 -9

Attachment five (5) includes responsive documents regarding the easements and other legal
instruments in effect at the time of construction of the project and currently, in addition to an email
notifying the District Chairperson of potential encroachment on Hearst property.

1. August 19, 2015 Opinion of Counsel Relative To Right-of-Way.

2. May 15, 1933 Abandonment of County Road Right-of-Way (Road V-SLO-56-B).

3. February 28, 1958 Grant Deed from Southall to Rancho San Simeon Acres.

4. June 9, 1972 Easement Agreement and Deed from Hearst to San Simeon Acres CSD for
construction, replacement, and removal or water reservoir and water pipeline (Section 4).

5. May 7, 2015 email from the County of San Luis Obispo acknowledging a completed Land Use
Permit Application and Fee Waiver.

6. October 26, 2020 Encroachment License Agreement between Hearst and District.

7. Recent photos of fence line on or about abandoned county road between Hearst and
District properties.

8. December 18, 2018 email notifying District Chairperson of potential encroachment.

9. February 25, 2021 letter from Ogden & Fricks LLP regarding encroachment allegation.
Proposition 1 IRWM Disadvantaged Community Involvement Grant Program,
Agreement No. 4600012296
Original Request by Flood Control District Response by SSCSD Flood Control District
(see letter dated 12/21/2020 for details) Comments on Response

Request No.10. Written response to See Narrative Provide legal analysis,

complaint'with Legal Analysis of compliance Response to Request | including, without limitation,

with Standard Condition D.13 and applicable No. 1 analysis of Government Code

statutes Section 4529.12

Request No. 11. Documentation of process See Document Provide documentation per

in selection of Phoenix Civil Engineering Response to Request | SSCSD procurement policy,

No. 11 including, without limitation,

analysis of compliance with
SSCSD Policy 4042.11 (if in
effect at time)

Request No. 12. Documentation of approval Provided n/a

of Phoenix Civil Engineering to perform work

Paso Robles Office: 1948 Spring Street *+ Paso Robles, CA 93446-1620 + T 805-238-2300 + F 805-238-2322




John Diodati, Interim Director, Department of Public Works
County of San Luis Obispo
June 4, 2021

Page 9
Request No. 13. Copy of SSCSD current See Document Provide effective date(s) of
procurement policy Response to Request | policies provided by SSCSD
No. 4 and any additional
responsivepolicy
Request No. 14. Copy of SSCSD See Document Provide effective date(s) of
procurement policy at the time of process Response to Request | policies provided by SSCSD
and approval of Phoenix Civil Engineering No. 14 and any additional
responsive policy

Document Response to Request No. 11

Attachment six (6) includes responsive documents regarding the process in selecting Phoenix
Civil Engineering.

1.
2.

June 7, 2018 Potable Water Reservair Design Proposal from Phoenix Engineering.

June 13, 2018 District Agenda (Item 6.E.) Consideration of Potable Water Reservoir
Engineering Design from Phoenix Engineering.

June 13, 2018 Meeting Minutes (Iltem 6.E.) Board approval of agreement regarding Potable
Water Reservoir Engineering Design.

Document Response to Request No. 14

Attachment seven (7) includesresponsive documents regarding the process in selecting Phoenix
Civil Engineering.

1.
2.

Effective 2004; District Policy 4042 “Employment of Outside Contractors and Consultants”.
Effective April 11, 2012; District Resolution 12-348 election to subject District to the Uniform
Public Construction Cost Accounting Procedures.

Effective April 11, 2012; Ordinance No. 111 providing informal bidding procedures under the
Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act.

Effective June 11, 2014; District Resolution 14-363 election to subject District to the Uniform
Public Construction Cost Accounting Procedures.

June 13, 2018 District Agenda (Item 6.E.) Consideration of Potable Water Reservoir
Engineering Design from Phoenix Engineering.

June 13,2018 Meeting Minutes (Item 6.E.) Board approval of agreement regarding Potable
Water Reservoir Engineering Design.

Paso Robles Office: 1948 Spring Street *+ Paso Robles, CA 93446-1620 + T 805-238-2300 + F 805-238-2322




John Diodati, Interim Director, Department of Public Works
County of San Luis Obispo

June 4, 2021
Page 10
Proposition 1, Round 1 IRWM Grant Program
Original Request by Flood Control District Response by SSCSD Flood Control District
(see letter dated 12/21/2020 for details) Comments on Response

Request No. 15. 2019 IRWM Plan proof of Previously provided
adoption

Request No. 16. Certified environmental
documents with state clearinghouse ID

Request No. 17. No Legal challenges letter See Narrative and Provide status, schedule and
Document Response | steps to complete
to Request Nos. 17 - | incomplete grant-required

24 documentation.

Request No. 18. Land Use Permit from Not provided

County

Request No. 19. Grading Permit from Not provided

County

Request No. 20. -Any other applicable Not provided

permit(s) forproject

Request No. 21. Proof of right to construct Not provided
and operate project (i.e. easement)

Request No. 22. Project Monitoring Plan Not provided
Request No. 23. Other funding secured Not provided
Request No. 24. Explanation of status, Not provided
schedule and steps to complete incomplete

documents

Paso Robles Office: 1948 Spring Street *+ Paso Robles, CA 93446-1620 + T 805-238-2300 + F 805-238-2322



John Diodati, Interim Director, Department of Public Works
County of San Luis Obispo

June 4, 2021

Page 11

Narrative Response to Request No. 17 — 24

The proposed Proposition 1, Round 1 IWRM Grant (“Water Tank Grant”) is intended to assist the
District in financing an infrastructure improvement project including the installation of two new water
storage tanks at 400,000 gallons each (“Community Water Tank Project”). The proposed new water
tanks would provide increased water storage capacity which is intended to help increase water stored
for firefighting and help satisfy fire flow concerns discussed in the 2018 District Water System Master
Plan (“Master Plan”). As identified in the Master Plan, the existing potable water storage volume is far
below what is required for fire suppression needs. The purpose.of the proposed project is to help bring
the community water storage capacity up to meet fire suppression requirements.

In or about August 2019, the District completed an Initial Study and Mitigated Negative
Declaration (“Study and Declaration”) for the Community Water Tank Project. On October 9, 2019, the
District Board of Directors reviewed, analyzed, and considered the Study and Declaration and adopted
Resolution No. 19-414 determining that “there is no substantial evidence supporting a fair argument
that the Project will have a significant effect on the environment.” There have been no legal challenges
to the Study and Declaration or any other aspect of the proposed project.

The State Water Resources Control Board Division of Drinking Water (“DDW”) will be the
permitting authority for the proposed project. At this time, no permits of any kind have been obtained
because the project is not ready for construction as funding has not been secured. Other than the
Water Tank Grant, no other funding source is-available or secured at this time. A Mitigation Monitoring
and Reporting Program is provided in Section 7 (p. 56) of the Study and Declaration.

Thestatus, schedule, and steps to complete requested but incomplete documents are unknown
pending a funding agreement for the Community Water Project.

Document Response to Request No. 17 — 24

Attachment eight (8) includes responsive documents regarding the process in selecting Phoenix
Civil Engineering.

1. Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration Section 7 (Mitigation Monitoring and
Reporting Program).

2. October 9, 2019 Resolution No. 19-414 adopting Initial Study and Mitigated Negative
Declaration.

3. No Legal Challenges Letter.

With this correspondence, it is the District’s intent to provide a complete response to (1) the
County’s requests for information dated December 21, 2020, and May 6, 2021; (2) the issues raised in

Paso Robles Office: 1948 Spring Street *+ Paso Robles, CA 93446-1620 + T 805-238-2300 + F 805-238-2322



John Diodati, Interim Director, Department of Public Works
County of San Luis Obispo

June 4, 2021

Page 12

the November 4, 2020, notification that you received from the California Department of Water
Resources (“DWR”); and (3) the information request your department received from the Regional Water
Management Foundation (“RWMF”) dated November 10, 2020. Please contact us with any further
inquiries regarding the information provided. The IRWM and other water resource grants are
absolutely crucial to the District’s ability to provide safe and reliable water to its community.

Very truly yours,

ADAMSKI MOROSKI MADDEN
CUMBERLAND & GREEN LLP

JEFFREY A. MINNERY

Enclosures

Cc: Brendan Clark, SLO County, Supervising Water Resources Engineer, BClark@co.slo.ca.us
Charles Grace, General Manager (Grace Environmental Services), San Simeon CSD,
cgrace@graceenviro.com
Gwen Kellas, Chairperson, San Simeon CSD, gkellas@sansimeoncsd.org

Paso Robles Office: 1948 Spring Street *+ Paso Robles, CA 93446-1620 + T 805-238-2300 + F 805-238-2322


mailto:BClark@co.slo.ca.us
mailto:cgrace@graceenviro.com
mailto:gkellas@sansimeoncsd.org

ATTACHMENT 1



Proposition 84 IRWM Grant Program. Agreement No. 4600011487

Request No. 2 Documentation of Not Provided Provide documentation
process in per SSCSD .
selection of _procur_ement.pollcy,
Phoenix Civil including, without
Engineering limitation, analysis of

compliance with

Request No. 3 _ SS(}SD Policy .4042.11

q ' Documentation of (if in effect at time)
Approval of
Phoenix Civil

Engineering to
Perform work

1. Effective April 9, 2014 Resolution 13-362 implementing Stage Three Water Shortage.

2. September 23, 2014 Phoenix Civil Engineering Potable Water Treatment Design Proposal.

3. October 8, 2014 District Agenda (Item 6.C.) Consideration of Phoenix Design Proposal.

4. October 8, 2014 District Board Meeting Minutes/Approval of Phoenix Wellhead Treatment
Design Proposal (Item 6.C.) and Board motion to authorize purchase of Wellhead Treatment
Unit (Item E).

5. District engineering company rate sheets.

6. April 8, 2015 District Board Meeting Agenda adopting Resolution 15-371 Water Shortage
Emergency (Item 6.C.).

7. April 8, 2015 District Resolution 15-371 implementing Stage-Three Water Shortage.
8. California Code of Regulations, Title 22 Secondary Drinking Water Standards.

9. SLO County Response Materials for 2015 — 2017 regarding San Simeon CSD Chloride
monitoring levels.

ATTACHMENT 1



RESOLUTION NO. 13-362

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT IMPLEMENTING A
STAGE THREE WATER SHORTAGE PURSUANT TO THE DISTRICT’S
WATER CONSERVATION PLAN

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the San Simeon Community Services
District (“District”) has adopted Ordinance No.114 amending and restating the
District's Water Conservation Plan; and

WHEREAS, Section 4 of Ordinance No. 114 gives the Board of Directors the
authority to implement a Stage Three Water Shortage by way of resolution
whenever to do so is necessary to protect the health, safety and general welfare
of the public; and

WHEREAS, on January 17, 2014, the Governor of the State of California
declared a state of emergency (the “Proclamation”) due to record dry conditions
and concerns over the State’s dwindling water supplies. The Proclamation states
that “local urban water suppliers and municipalities are called upon to implement
their local water shortage contingency plans immediately in order to avoid or
forestall outright restrictions that could become necessary later in the drought
season”; and

WHEREAS, the domestic water supply for the District may be inadequate based
upon the continued lack of precipitation and the current water levels in the
aquifers that provide the domestic water supply for the District, and specifically
that water levels in the Pico Creek are such that staff has determined that the
available water supply may be insufficient to meet demand; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San
Simeon Community Services District as follows:

1. The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by this
reference.
2. Based upon the existing water conditions, as described above, the Board

of Directors hereby finds that the demands and requirements of water
consumers cannot be satisfied without depleting the water supply of the
District to the extent that there would be insufficient water for human
consumption, sanitation and fire protection and that, based on this
condition and on concerns regarding the anticipated prolonged drought
conditions, the Board of Directors hereby declares a Stage Three Water
Shortage and hereby implements the Stage Three Water Shortage
measures and restrictions, as set forth in Ordinance No. 114, which the
Board of Directors finds are necessary to protect the health, safety and

general welfare of the public.
SSCSD Res. 13-361 Page 1 of 2



3. The District Secretary shall provide notice of the implementation of the
Stage Three Water Shortage by special mailing or by notice inserted into
the water/sewer bills. Notices will also be posted at the District office,
Chamber of Commerce, San Simeon Post Office and the District website.

4. This Resolution shall take effect upon adoption.

5. District staff is hereby directed to continue to monitor and evaluate water
and drought conditions on an ongoing basis and report back to the Board
of Directors on a monthly basis.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 9™ day of April, 2014.

/’/ 2 - /
L /& (—
B?pﬁ’ﬂ/chdams, Chairpers

bard of Directors /

ATTEST:

—

éharles Grace,
Secretary/General Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Tk F e fpiA

“Heather K. Whitham
District Counsel

SSCSD Res. 13-361 Page 2 of 2



Phoenix Civil Engineering, Inc.

4532 Telephone Road, Ste. 113 Venturd, Ca 7?3003 805.658.4800
iInfo@phoenixcivil.com www.phoenixcivil.com

Mr. Ralph McAdams September 23, 2014
San Simeon Community Services District

111 Pico Ave. Esbanesr A ;,.?\
San Simeon, CA 93452 e vy _

!
e

e e —

San Simeon Community Services District — Potable Water Wellhead Treatment Design Project—
Proposal for Engineering Design, Bid and Construction Phase Services

Dear Mr. McAdams-

[ am pleased to provide you with this proposal for engineering design, bid and construction phase services
associated with the Potable Water Wellhead Treatment Desi gn Project. The water supply for the San
Simeon Community Services District is groundwater from Pico Creek. The creek is a perennial stream
and groundwater elevations fluctuate based on demand and recharge of the local shallow aquifer. The
District frequently experiences periods of water rationing to'limit/reduce the influence of ocean infrusion
mto the basin. A delicate balance is present between the Pico Creek aquifer and the intrusion of saltwater.
Below specific groundwater elevations, the District potable water wells begin to experience elevated
chloride levels and eventually have to switch to a backup well for short durations. The District is
currently analyzing the elevation sensitivity of the aquifer and investigating the possibility of an advanced
water treatment system to remove the elevated.chloride levels from the community drinking water. This
will provide the District with a long range solution by allowing better management of the aquifer in
periods of drought or depressed aquifer elevations. Based on my discussions with the General Manager
of the District, I have included the following in my proposal:

Phase 1 - Design Services

Task 101: Technology Research

Task 102: Coordination with Equipment Supplier
Task 103: Plans and Specifications Preparation
Task 104: Permit Assistance

Phase 2 - Bid Services

Task 201: Prebid Meeting

Task 202: Respond to Requests for Information
Task 203: Preparation of Addenda

Task 204: Recommendation of Award

Phase 3 - Construction Services

Task 301: Preconstruction Meeting

Task 302: Submittal Review

Task 303: Respond to Requests for Information
Task 304: Project Coordination/Site Observations

Task 305: Record Drawings



Mr. Ralph McAdams September 23, 2014

I appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal to assist you with this project. 1 have attached a scope
of work and our professio

schedule.

nal services rate sheet

along with a fee schedule detailed by task and a project
Please let me know if you have any q

uestions or would like to discuss my proposal.

(|
_ |
| !
T |
!
e /Jﬂ
<2 B

Sincﬂ;i@

//
E K\LJC}S& C { C"?Fﬂlrk.;_."r Couts i
: - I o . 1 '.a.-if"
Jon Turner-PE | Cotrr cmprir s
Principal Engineer

Cams Spn-@et 0

2002



September 23, 2014

Scope of Services
Background/Project Understanding

The water supply for the San Simeon Community Services District is groundwater from Pico Creek. The
creek is a perennial stream and groundwater elevations fluctuate based on demand and recharge of the
local shallow aquifer. The District frequently experiences periods of water rationing to limit/reduce the
influence of ocean intrusion into the basin. A delicate balance is present between the Pico Creek aquifer
and the intrusion of saltwater. Below specific groundwater elevations, the District potable water wells
begin to experience elevated chloride levels and eventually have to switch to a backup well for short
durations. The District is currently analyzing the elevation sensitivity of the aquifer and investi gating the
possibility of an advanced water treatment system to remove the elevated chloride levels from the
community drinking water. This will provide the District with a long range solution by allowing better
management of the aquifer in periods of drought or depressed aquifer elevations. Based on my
discussions with the General Manager of the District, I have included the following in my proposal:

Phase 1 — Design Services

Task 101: Technology Research
As part of the initial steps in the project development, research will be performed into viable treatment

technologies for the potable water system. Discussions with manufacturers/suppliers will be conducted to
determine the appropriate treatment technology to meet the current and future District needs. It is envisioned
that several different treatment systems or manufacturers will be identified for consideration.

The following efforts are included in this task:
* Discussions with equipment manufacturers/suppliers.
Deliverable: No deliverable is associated with this task. Information collected will be used in Task 102.

Task 102: Coordination with Equipment Supplier
This task will take the existing water quality information provided by the District and distribute it to the
proposed equipment supplier for their design calculations. The treatment product is envisioned to be a skid

mounted treatment process that is compact and can be located near the District office where it can intercept the
discharge piping system from the well field.

The following efforts are included in this task:
* Coordination with the proposed equipment supplier once the treatment system is identified.

Deliverable: No deliverable is associated with this task. Information on the proposed treatment system will
be collected and provided to the District staff as an informational item and for input.

Task 103: Plans and Specifications Preparation

Once Tasks 101 and 102 have been completed, improvement plans incorporating the proposed technology will
be prepared. As stated previously, the site is initially identified as the area northeast of the existing District
office. This location was selected in discussions with District staff because it is where the well field
distribution pipeline enters the system. The skid mounted unit will be incorporated into the plan set and
specifications. Specifications for the improvement project will be prepared using the District front end
documents supplemented with technical specifications for the improvements outside of the treatment unit.

Page 1 of 5



September 23, 2014

The following efforts are included in this task:

o Project plans, specifications and Opinion of Probable Construction Cost (OPCC) preparation.

Deliverable: Two paper copies and one electronic copy of the 50% plans, specifications and OPCC will be
provided to the District for their review. Once the comments are received and incorporated into the plans and
specifications, one paper (full size ~ 22 x 34) and one electronic copy of the final set of plans, as well as a
reproducible set of specifications and OPCC will be issued to the District.

Task 104: Permit Assistance

This task will work with District staff to identify the necessary permits for the improvement project and
provide assistance in obtaining the identified permits. At this point, a County of SLO permit may be nceded as
well as a State Water Resources Control Board permut. The treatment system may also require an upgraded
power service due to the nature of the treatment technology. Coordination with PG&E (local power supplier)
as well as preparation of permit paperwork for the upgrade will be handled.

The following efforts are included in this task:

e Coordination with local regulatory agencies regarding the treatment system and necessary permits.
* Completion of identified permit applications for the project.

Deliverable: One paper copy and one electronic copy of the'completed permit applications will be provided
to the District for their files/signatures. Original documents will be sent to the permit agencies.

Phase 2 — Bid Services

Once the design is complete, the District will have to advertise, receive bids and award a construction contract

to a general construction contractor for the work,

The following efforts are included this phase:

° Task 201 Provide bid phase support to District staff including a prebid meeting. The meeting will be held
at the District offices and the proposed construction site. The prebid meeting will be conducted by
Phoenix Civil Engineering staff. A summary of discussion topics and questions to be compiled in an
addendum will be provided. It is anticipated that District staff will maintain a list of contract document
plan holders for record purposes.

o Task 202 Respond to contractor’s requests for information (RFIs). It is anticipated that up to 4 requests
for information will be prepared during the bid phase. The responses will originate from Phoenix Civil
Engincering, but will be mailed out from the District. Coordination will be handled by Phoenix Civil
Engineering.

e Task 203 Prepare up to two project addenda incorporating the prebid meeting questions as well as the RFI
responses warranting formal clarification. Coordination with the equipment manufacturer on responses

will be conducted. The District will mail out the addenda.

Page 2 of S



September 23, 2014

® Task 204 Review the submitted construction bid packages for conformance with the project contract
documents. Contact project references that are provided by the low bid contractor and the next low bidder.
Compile a recommendation of award for District Board approval. Attendance at a Board meeting with

District staff to review the project bids and recommendations is included in this task.

Deliverable: Responses to requests for information (RFIs) will be distributed to the plan holders on the
District maintained list as well as a copy to the District for its records. District staff will mail out the responses
to the RFIs. Preparation of up to two addenda will be performed and the documents will be delivered to the
District for delivery to the plan holders. The correspondence will be prepared and transmitted directly to
District staff. No correspondence directly with the prospective bidders will be performed unless approved by
the District. Copies of all correspondence will be delivered to the District at the completion of the bid phase.

Phase 3 — Construction Services

As part of this task, the construction manager will provide construction management support to the District for
the project. This includes construction of the proposed improvements to the water distribution system, the
concrete equipment skid pad, waste discharge lines and the electrical service undergrounding. The project
specifications indicate that it will take 55 working days (approximately 2.5 months) to complete the project.
The schedule is assumed to be as follows:

e  Shop drawing review — Three weeks

e  Equipment installation — Two weeks

* Piping installation and concrete pad installation — four weeks
° Project final punchlist items — One week

For a total of approximately 11 weeks of construction. It is anticipated that construction management and
onsite observation will be provided one day a wéek during construction activities. During times of minimized
construction activity, the construction observation will be handled by District staff.

The construction phase services include review of the project shop drawings. It is estimated that 6 project shop
drawing submittals will be provided by the Contractor. For purposes of this proposal it is assumed that one
initial review and one subsequent review will be conducted by the construction manager for approval. The
construction phase support will also include providing the District with project coordination and
communication between the contractor, design firm and District staff. The construction manager will be the
primary point of contact and all correspondence will be handled by Phoenix Civil Engineering. In addition,
the construction manager will conduct the weekly project progress meetings and prepare the project weekly
reports outlining the daily observations, photographs, potential construction changes, and schedule updates.
The District supplied construction observer when the construction manager is not onsite will also be required
to provide daily observation reports. The construction manager will also review the monthly progress payment
requests from the contractor and provide a recommendation and packet to the District in the approved format.
If necessary, the construction manager will review any project change order requests from the contractor and
provide a recommendation packet to the District. Lastly, the construction red line markups of the design plans
will be incorporated into the design plans and a set of record drawings will be provided to the District at the
end of the construction. Once the contractor has been selected, the project duration is anticipated to be 55
working days.
The following efforts are included in this task:
o Task 301 Prepare for and conduct the project construction kick off meeting with the contractor and
District staff. The meeting will be held at the District offices and the proposed construction site. A
sumimary of discussion topics and project deliverables will be provided.

Page 3 of 5



September 23, 2014

® Task 302 Review and coordinate the project shop drawing submittals. It is anticipated that 6 submittals
will be reviewed. As part of this proposal, two reviews of the submittals will be conducted for approval.
The District will retain the design engineer for review of specific shop drawings relating to specific
equipment.

e Task 303 Respond to contractor’s requests for information (RFIs). It is anticipated that up to 4 requests
for information will be prepared durin g the construction phase. It is assumed that the District wil] retain
the services of the design firm to assist in the responses requiring design clarification. The responses will
originate and be mailed from Phoenix Civil Engineering. Coordination will be handled by Phoenix Civil
Engineering.

* Task 304 Provide project coordination between the selected contractor and the District. Monitor and
document the contractor’s submitted project schedule. The schedule will be reviewed at the weekly
meetings. Submit weekly project update reports to the District. The report will address the schedule, shop
drawing status, construction progress, potential 1ssues/changes, upcoming activities, project photographs,
and meeting summary. Provide progress payment review and recommendation for approval packages to
the District. Prepare and provide recommendation for approval of any project change orders to the District
in the approved format. For purposes of this proposal, it is anticipated that one change order package may
be necessary. Provide the District with a compilation of the daily construction observation reports on a
weekly basis.

o Task 305 Record drawing preparation at the completion of the construction phase based on the redline
markups provided by the contractor.

Deliverable: Two copies of all preliminary and final shop drawings that have been reviewed for conformance
will be provided to the District. Weekly project reports detgiling the previous week’s activities (meeting
summary, project schedule update, potential construction issues, daily observation reports, coordination issues,
photographs, etc) will be provided. Any change order submittal will be reviewed and discussed with the
District. At the completion of the project construction phase a complete copy of all construction related
correspondence as well as the final as built drawings‘will be provided to the District for their files. |

Fee Estimate Summary

Work associated with Tasks 101 through 305 is estimated to cost $ 21,544 (Tasks 100 - $10,396, Tasks 200 -
$3,310, Tasks 300 - $7,838). A breakdown of the level of effort is listed below:

Phase 1 - Design Services

o Task 101: Technology Research $930
® Task 102: Coordination with Equipment Supplier $910
¢ Task 103: Plans and Specifications Preparation $7776
o Task 104: Permit Assistance 5780
Phase 2 ~ Bid Services
 Task 201: Prebid Meeting $780
* Task 202: Response to Requests for Information $830
e Task 203: Preparation of Addenda $610
» Task 204: Recommendation of Award $1090
Phase 3 - Construction Services
® Task 301: Pre Construction Meeting 5610
¢ Task 302: Shop Drawing Review Coordination $1740
* Task 303: Response to Requests for Information $610
* Task304: Project Coordination Meetings $3820
¢ Task 305: Project Record Drawings $1058
L

Page 4 of 5




September 23, 2014

Assumptions

In preparing the proposal, the following was assumed:

2

The project construction timeframe is 55 warking days or 11 weeks.

The District will retain the services of a materials testing firm for concrete, soil compaction and other
testing related services as identified in the project specifications.

The District will provide support Inspection services during times when construction is minimized.
The District will retain the design firm to provide design services during construction for technical
questions relating to the design.

No geotechnical services are included in this proposal.

The extent of the level of effort associated with the Construction Phase portion of the project is difficult
to determine at this time as the design has not been performed. The fee estimate shown for those
services is an assumption.

The District will retain the services of an inspector for electrical and instrumentation observation if
applicable,

Page 5 of 5



PHOENIX

CiviL ENGINEERING, I1NC

Professional Services Rate Sheet

Principal Engineer $155/hour
Resident Engineer $145/hour
Professional Engineer $130/hour
Staff Engineer $120/hour
Senior Designer $116/hour
Construction Observer $100/hour
Junic:;.r: .Ill:;signer $85/hour
Technical Assistant S65/hour
Administrative Assistant $45/hour

Costs associated with printing and computer time are calculated in the rates. large
quantities of printing (multiple sets of specifications, reports, etc.) will be billed at an
agreed upon rate. Subconsultant costs will be marked up 10%.

e o e B Rt - o B e o - [ 7] S e— S ——



S

AGENDA
SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING
Wednesday, October 8, 2014
6:00 pm

CAVALIER BANQUET ROOM
250 San Simeon Avenue
San Simeon, CA

1. REGULAR SESSION: 6:00 PM
A. Roll Call

B. Pledge of Allegiance

2. PUBLIC COMMENT:

Any member of the public may address and ask questions of the Board relating to any matter within the Board’s
Jurisdiction, provided the matter is not on the Board’s agenda. Presentations are limited to three (3) minutes or
less with additional time at the discretion of the Chair. Your comments should be directed to the Board as a whole
and not directed to individual Board members. The Brown Agt restricts the Board from taking formal action on
matters not p<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>